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A. The following questions were received for Request for Offer (RFO) 03-C3K-001 

   dated April 9, 2003. The questions and answers follow:
1. Do you believe that the Phase II contract award will be for a similar or 

   greater amount, or has that not been decided yet?
Answer: Phase II proposals should emphasize modeling/simulation or emulation activities to demonstrate system concepts, concept feasibility, NAS impact, and reduced vulnerability.  The “Information to Offers” indicate Phase II is expected to take approximately 8 months.  The amount of the Phase II contract award is dependent upon the simulation, modeling, or demonstration activity proposed by the offerer based on the concept and functional requirements developed during Phase I.  A contract amount has not been specifically identified.  
2. The RFO states that concept and approach “leverages and is relevant to existing or planned NAS programs.”  What are these programs?
Answer: Relevant existing or planned NAS programs are found in the following FAA documents; Blueprint for NAS Modernization, and Operational Evolution Plan and could include systems such as ADS-B, multilateration, Safe Flight 21, free flight, VDL Mode-2, NextCOM (VDLM-3/4) and associated data link technologies, CPDLC, surveillance radar upgrades and replacements, etc.
3. How many protected airspace regions exist or could be designated?  What is the size of a protected airspace region?
Answer: Current protected airspace are provided on the Internet by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and available from Flight Service Stations (FSS).  The location, size, and altitude limits of the restricted airspaces vary.
4. Do protected airspace regions change dynamically? (Does the architecture require a mobile component to deal with these changes?)
      Answer: To be provided by 5/1/03.
5. Where are the current means of monitoring and protecting protected or restricted airspace defined?  Is there a specific document that we may have access to?

Answer: To be provided by 5/1/03.
6. What are the threat/intruder scenarios against which an architecture will be evaluated?
Answer:  Item 2.1.1 requests the offer to identify vulnerabilities and threats to the current systems addressed by the proposed protected surveillance system concept.  A list of the threat/intruder scenarios is not available at this time.
7. Will the customer provide a list of other relevant studies by FAA/TSA or other organizations? (Please see 2.1.1 in SOW).
Answer: A list of relevant studies conducted by the FAA/TSA is not currently available.  Paragraph 3.3 and 3.4 discuss close coordination with FAA and other agencies to improve the PASS study product.  During the course of the study, the contractor(s) is encouraged to seek out relevant studies during discussions with FAA/TSA or other agencies and share the studies with NASA.  Also, NASA will share relevant studies (compliant with confidentiality or national security regulations) it receives during the course of the PASS effort so as not to duplicate or repeat work and to improve the over all concept of the PASS.
8. What are the high value assets requiring PASS coverage?  Trains?  Airports?  Seaports? Cities?  Public venues such as sports stadiums?  NASA and Government facilities?

Answer:  At this time, high valued assets are typically delineated within restricted or protected airspace NOTAMS identified by the FAA (See question #3)
9. How much time, prior to a protected airspace penetration, must you predict such penetration?  What is the performance metric for predicting penetration?
Answer:  The offer is expected to provide these answers/solutions or make appropriate recommendations during the course of the PASS study.
10.Does the term “ground control” refer to an existing government or military  

   facility or are the characteristics/functions of “ground control” to be 
   defined within the proposed architecture?
Answer: “ground control” in section 2.1.A is to be defined within the PASS concept proposed by the offer.  Ground control may refer to a single (fixed site or transferable/virtual) command center for protected area surveillance or distributed across the country.  Also, appropriate coordination with other agencies should be considered.
11.If multiple ground control locations exist, must the architecture address 
   communication and coordination between these locations?
Answer:  The PASS effort shall focus on the technologies needed to monitor, track, predict and detect protected airspace penetration by commercial and general aviation aircraft and notification to ground control (defined in question #10).  Of particular interest are vehicle (on-board and air/air) technologies, vehicle tracking, and secure data link technologies necessary for the protected airspace concept.  Terrestrial communication among distributed ground locations may be discussed within the concept of operations, but need not be fully developed within the function requirements.
12.   What is the requirement for time between: 

a. Predicted entry into protected/restricted airspace and notification of ground control?
b. Penetration of protected/restricted airspace and recognition of such penetration?
c. Recognition of penetration and notification of ground control?

Answer: The offer is expected to provide these answers/solutions or make appropriate recommendations during the course of the PASS study.
13.   Are large businesses (i.e., > 500 employees) allowed to participate as 

     subcontractors on this solicitation?

        Answer: Yes, large businesses are allowed to participate as  

       subcontractors on this solicitation as long as the small business 
       (prime)performs at least 50% of the cost of contract performance.
    14. Page 3 of the RFO, item 2. "Concept Feasibility," states that the 
       following value characteristics apply:  "capability and feasibility of 
       proposed protected surveillance concepts to reduce threats and 
       penetration of protected airspaces by commercial and general aviation 
       aircraft."  Is the offeror required to submit PASS concepts as part of 
       their proposal, or is the evaluation based on the offeror's ability to 
       generate and evaluate PASS concepts as part of the Phase I effort? If the 
       offeror is requested to submit concepts as part of their proposal, what 
       is the difference between these concepts and those 
        reported on at the end of Phase I?

Answer: The offer is required to submit sufficient detail of the PASS concept(s) envisioned as part of their proposal.  This is requested on page 5 of the RFO, under the section starting:

The following technical information is required to be submitted

1. OFFERS SHALL INCLUDE A DESCRIPTION IN SUFFICIENT DETAIL TO SHOW THAT THE PRODUCT OR SERVICE OFFERED MEETS THE SPECIFICATION/STATEMENT OF WORK INCLUDED IN THE ATTACHED MODEL CONTRACT. 

 a. Describe in sufficient detail the surveillance/communications protected airspace surveillance (or next generation NAS surveillance) system concept scenario or scenarios and associated architecture. Identify significant characteristics and key technology issues to investigate and planned approach to resolve. Cite benefits of proposed architecture in terms of implementation, feasibility, scalability, and cost. Identify high risk items and risk mitigation (technical, procedural, cultural, etc.) to resolve during study.

b. Provide study phase outline, schedule.

The Phase I evaluation will be based on the initial concept feasibility provided in the proposal.  The difference between the concept(s) proposed and the end of Phase I will be the detail associated with the concept (e.g. Concept of Operations, Functional Requirements, coordination with other agencies and aircraft operators, technology requirements and gap assessments, rough cost, schedule, and impact estimates, risk assessments, etc.)
    15. On page 9 of the RFO, under "Phase I and Phase II Option," the 
       solicitation states that Phase I is not expected to exceed $450k; what 
       dollar amount is Phase II not expected to exceed?

        Answer: Refer to Question #1.
     16.Are there any known OCI implications of participating in the PASS 
        effort? For example, will PASS participants (either as prime or 
        subcontractor) be precluded in any way from participating in NASA 
        follow-on ATM research or development activities (e.g., NextNAS)?

Answer:  To be provided by 5/1/03.
 17. Is the study limited to changes within the FAA NAS architecture or are

     recommendations for possible changes in DoD and law enforcement 
     organizations also to be considered?

Answer:  Section 3.4 considers the role of the NAS in the overall national security surveillance system.
“…The study shall identify the role of the NAS protected airspace surveillance system in context of the overall national security surveillance system.  Other government surveillance systems shall be discussed and leveraged when appropriate and available to increase the safety and security of the NAS for air travel…”

Therefore, the study is intended to focus on the FAA NAS architecture elements but is not limited to the FAA NAS architect.  DoD and other law enforcement organizations could be considered in the concept of operations.
 18. Should the contractor assume that the development and administration of 
     the proposed PASS architecture is a responsibility of the FAA (or is 
     this determination another aspect of the study)?

Answer:  The responsibility, development and administration of the PASS should be identified as part of the study.  The study shall discuss the relationship or operation between the FAA and other appropriate agencies.
19. Reference is made to system architectures, does this mean that NASA 
    desires multiple, alternative approaches be investigated by the selected 
    contractor.
Answer: One or more concepts may be investigated by the contractor, if necessary to improve the feasibility and/or implementation of the concept(s).
20. What is the scope of the demonstration referred to in Task 1 of Phase
     1?  Is a local simulation demonstration the desire or is a more 
     sophisticated capability demonstration of interest. For instance 
     distributed interactive M&S systems such as the DoD’s DIS/HLA systems?

Answer: Phase I is a study effort and does not require a demonstration.  An offer may propose modeling or simulation efforts under Phase I to better determine the functional requirements and demonstrate greater concept maturity, but it is not required in the SOW.  Phase II requests and requires a simulation/emulation effort to demonstrate the concept and evaluate the trade space of the requirements.  A more sophisticated demonstration capability is of interest that could be expanded in future efforts.
21. These criteria seem to require an automation component as well as 
     surveillance. Does NASA desire that the PASS program design and simulate 
     a turnkey solution of surveillance, automation, communications, and all 
     other aspects of an end-to-end NAS system?

Answer: The PASS may have automation, communication, and surveillance components (e.g. flight plan updates, TFR updates, prediction and penetration detection, notification) associated with the end-to-end system.  The Concept of Operations should address the end-to-end system and how it fits within the NAS.  Phase II should address as much of the end-to-end system as schedule and cost allow focusing on the technical communications and surveillance challenges of the PASS.
22. Concerning alerts, is the intent to limit action to enabling actions or  do you mean generate and distribute alerts to appropriate agencies and services.
Answer:  The PASS should provide the communication data link requirements and implementation path to provide notification and alerts to predicted airspace threats and/or penetration or aircraft duress for air/ground, ground/air, and air/air as appropriate.  For the air/ground link refer to questions 10 and 11 for “ground control” definition.  The intent of the study at this maturity level is to get notice to “ground control”, not necessary the terrestrial communication among the agencies involved.
23. Concerning alert distribution, are DoD, Homeland Defense and local 
     authorities included in the candidate list for alerts?

  Answer:  Yes, refer to questions 10, 11, 17, and 22.
24. Is alert notification to adjacent aircraft considered a significant part of the study?

Answer: Notification to adjacent aircraft may be considered as part of the concept proposed to improve the situational awareness of aircraft.  If considered as part of a concept, include a discussion of the technologies or datalinks to enable secure air-to-air coordination and alerting.
25.Are the alerting and prediction algorithms considered part of the PASS 

   or does PASS enable these functions to be performed?

Answer: The PASS shall allow alerting functions to be performed.  Alerting algorithms may be suggested and described in the Concept of Operations but need not be fully developed in the Functional Requirements.  However, trajectory prediction algorithms shall be investigated and developed as part of the PASS.  
26.Failsafe systems: The item is very broad, could you provide some 
        clarification? For instance is there greater emphasis/concern with the 
        airborne systems? Is there a specific reliability or availability value 
        that is desired for the PASS to be considered fail-safe and fault 
        tolerant.

Answer:  Elements of the PASS concept shall comply with FAA certification process and procedures for airborne and ground systems.  Communication (e.g. data link) and surveillance technologies shall provide secure data transmission.  At this time, there is not a specific availability or reliability value for the PASS.
27.Since the PASS will be a concept architecture, it would seem that actual

   costs cannot be determined for it’s full implementation. Would cost 

   estimates be more realistic for this effort?

Answer:  It is anticipated that life cycle cost estimates will be provided with documented assumptions and justifications as part of the study for a prototype system and full scale system.  The cost estimates should mature throughout the course of the study in Phase I and continued during Phase II for those elements modeled, simulated or demonstrated.
28.Does simulation, modeling, and emulation permit the fielding of a 

   prototype PASS during Phase II or should this phase only focus on 

   predictions and laboratory assessments?

Answer: System emulation under Phase II permits the possibility of fielding a prototype PASS system within Phase II to demonstrate a greater maturity of concept feasibility and conduct NAS impact assessment.  The emulation shall identify the concept of operations demonstrated, system requirements verification, risks retired, improvement in cost estimates, government agency and aircraft operator/owner acceptance, etc.  System emulations (laboratory or fielded) shall highlight the select conditions from the trade space investigated during the simulation and modeling elements.
29. On page 4, item 13, it says that the page count limitation excludes 
   resumes. Should resumes be included with the proposal?
Answer: Resumes for key personnel shall be included with the proposal but is not counted toward the technical information page limit. 
30.On page 5, item 1.a., what is the “system concept scenario”?  Is  

   this simply the system concept description?
Answer:  The system concept description describes the system concept scenario.  They both imply the PASS concept proposed.
    31.On page 5, beginning in the second paragraph, the required technical 
       information is listed.  However, it is unclear whether all the listed 
       items are truly meant to be considered technical information (and 
       therefore subject to the 30 page limitation).  In particular, item 3, 
       Cost Information, would not appear to be technical information, though it 
       is included in the list.  In addition, several other items, such as 1.d, 
       1.e, and 1.f, do not seem to be "technical" in nature.  Please clarify 
       the items to which the 30 page limitation applies. 
Answer:  Cost information is not considered technical information and therefore not counted toward the technical information, page limit. On Page 5 of the RFO, Items 1.a, 1.b, 1.c, 1.d and 1.e, including statements to best value criteria identified on page 6 under the  2nd paragraph, 2.Value Characteristics shall be considered part of technical content.  Item 1.f shall be included with resumes and not considered part of technical content.  
32.On page 9, the Phase I work is estimated not to exceed $450K.  Is there a 
   rough NASA estimate for the Phase II work?
  Answer:  See question #1.
33.Will the model contract be changed to eliminate references to Phase II?
Answer:  No. The model contract will not be changed to eliminate references to Phase II. Phase II is a priced option in the contract which is subject to the down select procedures.
34.On page 25, third paragraph, it says that the task will “provide proposals 
   to develop and demonstrate recommended technology and systems.”  Is this a 
   portion of Phase II that is now outside the scope of the RFO?
Answer: The proposals “to develop and demonstrate recommended technologies and systems” are within scope of the RFO under Phase II.  The proposals for Phase II shall be submitted at the same time as Phase I proposals and each offer awarded a Phase I contract shall have an opportunity to revise their Phase II proposal as described in the clause entitled “PHASED ACQUISITION USING PROGRESSIVE COMPETTITION DOWN SELECTION PROCEDURES (NASA FAR SUPPLEMENT 1852.217-72) (MAY 2000) under Amendment No. 1 dated April 11, 2003 to RFO 03-C3K-001.
35. On page 30, the descriptions of the three required Phase I documents 
    sound very similar in many ways.  Would it be possible to merge these 
    three requirements into one document or to make the distinction between 
    them clearer to avoid duplication of information?
Answer: The three documents requested are intended to be unique documents and as such not have duplication of information.  The documents are intended for different audiences because of the level of technical content and detail expected from each document.  Some overlap may be unavoidable, but references between the documents will help prevent duplication of information.  The following descriptions provide further guidance and/or clarify the anticipated content of each document.  Both commercial and general aviation operations are included in each document, respectively (as opposed to Commercial Concept of Operations and GA Concept of Operations) in the event of common operations or systems.  Particulars of each aircraft class should be discussed in separate sections as appropriate.
Concept of Operations 

Provides the end-to-end description of the protected airspace surveillance system for both commercial and GA may include (BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO): background (overview of existing systems today – that apply to protected airspace surveillance), vulnerabilities and threats, detailed description of concept, roles and responsibilities, (e.g. aircraft system and pilot, air traffic control, “ground control” (defined in question #10 and #11), coordination among agencies, etc), implementation approach and transition plan, equipage issues to aircraft, cost drivers and estimates, data/information flow during different phases (monitoring/tracking, prediction, penetration, notification) of aircraft surveillance, issues, risks, government and aircraft owner/operator acceptance and coordination.
Functional Requirements

Describes what is required and how to implement the communication, surveillance, and navigation technologies to realize the Concept of Operations.  Elements of the architecture concept may include (BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO): functions or capabilities of new CNS technologies (both air and ground), interfaces to aircraft avionics, implications to provide secure links and networks, technical details of space- or ground based surveillance systems, details of “virtual” PASS command center (for example only, depends on concept proposed), bandwidth requirements of data links required for each element of communication or surveillance, etc.
Final Report

Some of the items mentioned under the Final Report in the SOW may be included in other documents.  The Final Report is intended to include the items requested in the statement of work not within scope of the Concept of Operations or Functional Requirements.  The final report may include the following; more detailed assessment of current and retiring surveillance systems (not included in ConOps), technology gap analysis indicating current state-of-art versus required advancements, discussion of relevant technologies, investment recommendations and roadmap.
Question 4, 5 and 16 will be answered on or before May 1, 20003 by amendment to RFO 03-C3K-001.
B. As a result of the above questions and answers, the page limitation of 30 
   pages as stated on page 4 of the RFO for technical information has been 
   increased to 35 pages.

C.Progress Payments will be the method for payment under Phase I for the
  Airspace System Study. Under Phase II, cost vouchers will be the method for 
  payment. All Contractors selected for award must have an approved 
  accounting system before award is to be made.
D. The date set for receipt of offers has been changed from 4:30 PM local 
   time May 12, 2003 to 4:30 PM local time May 19, 2003.
